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ihe present corporate limits of Fredericksburg include wmany architccturally
interesting structures such as Browmpton and Kenmore in the west and central
sections of the city, respectively. 7The highest concentration of signiiicant
structures, however, is located in a forty block area tha:t wuns zlong the
weslt bank of the Rappahannock, and north of Hazel Run. Thne topograjhy of
this area of Fredericksburg reaches its nighest point in a tea block arca

in the western center of the zone; the slopes are relatively gentle down

the east, south.and north of this area compared to the steeﬁ drop down to
the river below Sophia Street. TFive streets rum parallel to the ziver:
Sophia Street, Caroline Street, Princess Anne Street (R0ute 2), Charles
Street and Prince Edward Street. The southern quarter of the district is
cut off from the remalrder by the elevated R.F. and P.R.R. track.

o - .

The Preservation-Zone contains a complete vgrkety of functions having as it
does the commercial downtown area of the city, the city hall, several churches,
the train station and the city's oldest residential arcas. Of all the .
streets, Caroline Street has the most contrasts in street desigan. The e
blocks between Lafayette Boulevard (Route 1) and Amelia Strzet are almost az
totally commercial but include two-and-three-story early-and mid-nirneteanth —
| cencury buildings, especially on the east side of the 700 blocks. These -
structures are painted and the first floor facades are aitered,but the
aetalllng around the windows, the brick work and the gable roofs reveal their v
_ ~ At the south and north ends of Caroline Street are shaded lavns in foan: =i
( !of eighteenth and nineteenth ceatury residences. As on Careline Street, the =
. other parallel streets ave divided by a central commercial area generally c
centered in William Street. Sophia Strect has deteriorvated considerably due -

‘to-new conmercial development and parking facilities although several::-. .
important structures rewain. rincess Anne Street has its share of residential™’
structures -but ‘features several -churches and two govermment buildings.’ .Charles™
and Prince Edward Streets are primarily shaded residential streets.

SNO

The list of historic structures in this preservation zone includes the
following: Caroline Street: the Sentry dox, 133 Caroline 8t., irame, two-
storics, gable roof and modillionad cornice, built in the mid-eignieen
century by General Bugh Mercer; the Dr. Charles Mortimer ﬂOuSu, 213 Caroline
St., briek with stucco, two-stories, hipped rool with modillioned cornice,
built in the mid-eighteenth century by Dr. Mortiw:r, the first mayor of
Fredericksburg; the Dixon-Maury House, 214 Caroline St.. (mid-eighte=ath
century), lived in by Mathew Maury during the War Deiween the States; the
house at 300 Caroline St., dates from the late-cighteenth century; the
liarkiey-Monroe House, 301 Caroline St., brick 2% stovies, oue of the finest
in the city, owided by James Monroe, 1786 - 90, wihen he practiced law in  _
Fredericksburg; the Chimneys /now owned by Historic Fredericksbarg, Ine.,/
623 Caroline Street, a frame house with massive exierior end cuv‘qeys a
modillioned cornice and a suparb interior mantelpiece; Sc. Mary's Cathoelic
Chiureh, south side of Caroline Stract between Charlotte aré hanover Stc., !
small stuccoed structure in the Cothic Rovival siyle; Alcxanaey Duncar i
ouse (Oxford Shop), soutlwest cornzy of Cavoline and Witliam Sits., an :
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5STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

- Although suffering three disastrous fires in the early-nineteenth century,

With a history dating back to the seventeenth century,-Fredericksburg

has maintained a distinguished position in the annals of the Commonwealth.
Established in 1671 when a group of colonists settled on a piece of land
just below the falls of the Rappahamnock River, the town gradually grew
into a prosperous community. In 1727 the town was officially chartered
by the House of Burgesses and named Fredericksburg in honor of Frederick,
Prince of Wales and eldest son of George II. TFive vyears later Colonel
William Byrd visited there and reported that "Though this be a commodious
and beautiful situation for a town, with the advantages of a navigable
river ... yet the inhabitants are very few.'" He mentioned seeing ''the
public warehouse which is built on the figure .0of a cross" and the stone
prison. 1In 1748 with the establishment of a ferry across the Rappahannock
the town began to evolve into an important trading center.

|
|
i
|
|

During the Revolution many of the leading Virginia patriots were associated]
with: the town.. Colonel Fielding:. Lewis,.brother-in-law of Geaoirge Washington:
lived there in Kenmore with his mother-in-law, Mary Ball Washington, |
living:on:a neighboring street. Other; leaders. included General William i
Woodford, General Hugh Mercer, Lieutenant Colonel James Monroe and Major
Thomas Marshall,

Fredericksburg continued to grow and became an important commercial center
in ante bellum Virginia. By 1840 the town boasted 3,974 inhabitants and
seventy-three stores, one grist mill, two tanneries, five academies,

seven schools and four semi-weekly newspapers.

In spite of many modern encroachments, Fredericksburg retains an important
assemblage of eighteenth and nineteenth century buildings. With its
historical associations and representative architecture the town remains

a relatively undisturbed historic community that would greatly benefit

by a systematic and thorough restoration and renovation program.
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7. avched windows and "minarets' at the corners of the facade (1833); i
Fredericksburg Charity School, 1119 Caroline St., an carly-ninctecnth l
cencury brick structure; Basil Gordon House, southwest corner of Caroline |
and Lewis Sts., brick, two-stories, stone quoins (mid-eighteenth centur y) &
Rising Sun Tavern, 13006 Caroline St., this Iframe buillding was constructed E
in the mid-eighteenth century by Charles Washington. :

|

Charles Street: James Monroe Law Office (histeoric Museum), south side of
Charles St, betwecen George and William Sts,, brick, one-and-a-half storics ,
gable roof with dormers (mid-eighteenth century); Carter Ecuse (Jl¢ HRectory)!
1100 Charles St., brick, twovstories (latec~eighteenth century); Lecoy
Washington Inn, 1112 Charies St,, this f{rame building daies from the late-
elghteenth century; Mary Washington House, {(Zouse wuseum) 1200 Charles

St., this frame, two-story nouse was bougiht by George Washington Zor his
mother in 1777; Arthur Goodwin House, 1202 Charies St., one of the fow
gambrel roof structures remaining in Frecericksburg (late-eighteenth
century); Lewis-Danial House, 1300 Charles St., frame, one-and-a-half
stories with gambrel roof, an unusually attractive cottage in a well-shaced
i section of town.

Princess Anne Street: Patton-Wellford House, $00 Princess Anne 8t., brick,
two-and-a-half stories with zable roof (earlv-nlneteencn century); Masonic J
Lodge No. 4, (historic museum; nortiwest corner of Princess Anne anc llanover
Sts,, brick, two-stories, gable roof (1813); Fredevicksburg Court Housc, !
cast side of Princess Anne St. between George anc Hauover Sts,, brick with
stucco, two-stories, gable roof with octagonal tower and flanking wing
James Renwick, architect, W,M. Baggot, builder (1851); St. George's Ipi
Church, northwest corner of Princess Anne and George $Sts., brick with
stucco, one-story, gable roof with steeple (1834); Herndon Dabney louse
(The National Bank of Fredericiksburg), southwest corner of Princess Anne
and George Sts., brick, two-stories, gable cnd front (1819); Fredericksburg |
Presbyterian Church, southeast corner of Princess Anne ané George Sts.,
brick, one-story, gable roof with recessed porch and cupola {1833);
redericksburg City Hall, southeast corner of Princess Anne and Willia
brick, two-stories over stone foundations which originally served as ti
oid market place (1814); Fredericksburg Baptist Church, southeast corner
| of Amelia and Princess Anne Sts., brick with stucco, Dteeple, lancet~arzched
windows surrounded by rectangular inset panels (1854); John Macky House,
1201 Princess Anne St., brick, two-stories, gable roof (eariy-nineteenth

century).
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Prince Edward Street: Chew House (Stoner's Store Museum), 1202 Prince
Edward St., frame with brick noggin, two-stories (late-eighteenth century).
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Amalia Street: Smithsonia (Femnico
two-stories, gable voof with povtico (Ldi4;.

Hanover Streat: Merhodist Church, 310 lanovaer 2U., orick, one-story, goble
roof with flanking towers, Romanesqguco Rawvival; 5Lr. Carcer Wilrsowrd, 493
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7. Hanover St., brick, two~stories, hipped roof with two-story Dovic poctico
{mid-nineteenth century).

Sophia Street: Baylor-Wells House, 818 Sophia St., frawe, two-sto
owned by Historic Fredericksburg, Inc.; Stonc Warehouse, 915 Senhia
random-laid stone, one-story gable roof (eariy-eighieenth century).
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6. Historic American Buildings Survey Inventory

1957, 1958 Federal
Library of Congress
Washington, D, C. 11

9. New Guidebook & Maps of Fredericksbure, Virginia. Fredericksburg: holly
Hill Press, 1969.

Quinn, S.J. The History of the Citv of Fredericksbury, Virginia.
Richmond: The Hermitage Press, Inc., i5038.
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2. Begiqniﬂn at a peint formed by the intersection of the
Rappohannock River and what is now or formerly was Jefferson Street;

Streety tchence northerly more or less parallel with Caroline Street
alonz a line so located as to include ail properties fronting on
Carvoline Street to Dixon Street; thence westerly along Dixon Street
to Caarles Street; thence northerly along Charles Street to Dunmore
Stract thence waosterly along Dunmore Street to a point west of

Prince Ecix-.rard Straect; thence northerly more or less parallel with
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noint west of Caroline Street; thence northerly more
or less peraliel with Caroline Street along a line so located as to
treat extended to the Rappahannock River; thence
iie Rappanannock River to the point of beginning,
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thence wescerly axong said Jefferson Street to a point west of Caroline

a
a¢ along a line so located as to include all properties
Edward Street to Hawke Street; thence easterly along

ies Iventing on Caroline Street to Canal Street; thence
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8, SIGNIFICANCE

As noted on the original National Register nomination for the Fredericksburg
Historic District, the 20th century is part of the area of significance for the district.
The district's principal 20th-century resource is the collection of dignified Colonial
Revival buildings scattered throughout the commercial and residential section. The
sixteen main buildings in the style . demonstrate the popularity of the idiom and
virtually all of them are of unusually good quality. That the style was chosen for
some of the city's most important buildings—-the post office, the railroad station,
hospital, hotel, and leading bank~-is revealing of the acceptance of the style over
others and illustrates that it is a significant part of the district's fabric. Visually,
the Colonial Revival structures contribute to the district because they maintain the
scale and character of the distriet's original Georgian and Federal buildings and
occupy what could otherwise be significant gaps in street facades. The presence of
the Colonial Revival buildings further shows that the architects working in Fredericks-
burg in the early 20th century were sympathetic to the district's early character and
wanted their buildings to complement it rather than to contrast it. Virtually all of
the Colonial Revival buildings are built either in red brick or wood frame with
weatherboarding, the traditional building materials of old Fredericksburg.

The eclecticism of the district's oldest Colonial Revival structures is evident
on several examples including the railroad station by Heflin and Sterns, the former
post office by John Knox Taylor, and the commercial building at 523 Caroline Street.
These buildings combine English Georgian or Neo-Classical motifs with the American
Colonial idiom. Slightly later buildings show a more purely Georgian aspect such as
the Farmers and Merchants Bank, a very faithful adaptation of Sir Christopher Wren's
Winchester School, and the former Mary Washington Hospital building which has a
decidedly English aspect as well, showing the influence of the London Inns of Court.
Most of the Colonial Revival dwellings in the district are of the American foursquare
type with Classical ornamentation veneered onto them to give them a Colonial or
Georgian feeling. 1111 Prince Edward Street is an exception, however, being a rectilinear
dwelling covered by a gable rather than pyramidal roof. The residence at 1601 Carcline
Street, with its tall porticc, shows the influence of the Deep South or "Southern”
Colonial Revival on the distvict. One of the district's latest Colonial Revival
buildings, the Colonial Theatre of 1932, demonstrates both in name and style the in-
fluence of this 20th-century antiquarianism of Fredericksburg's popular culture.

CL/RC
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7. DESCRIPTION -- Inventory of Colonial Revival Buildings in Fredericksburg Historic
District

1. Regional Library, 1201 Caroline Street, ca. 1890-1900. The Regional Library
is a three-story, brick-and-stone trimmed building erected in ca. 1890-1900. The main
facade on Carolinme Street is divided by brick pilasters into nine bays, with three center
bays contained within a pavilion topped by a pediment. One of the earliest Georgian
Revival structures in Fredericksburg, the edifice inecorporates Georgian architectural
elements to accentuate its principal openings and roof line. Now a library, the structure
was originally built as a school at a time when the Georgian Revival was beginning to
be a preferred academic style of architecture.

2. Colonial Theater, 907-909 Carcline Street, ca. 1932. The Colonial Theater
is a two-story, five-bay brick structure built, as its name implies, in the Colonial
Revival style. Dating to the time of the Williamsburg restoration, the building employs
stone trim to accentuate its key architectural features. These include a roof balustrade,
quoining and pilasters which define the bays of the facade. The building forms an im-
portant element of the street facade of Caroline Street.

3. 523 Caroline Street, ca., 1920-1930. 523 Caroline Street is a 3%-story, seven-
bay brick structure dating to the 1920s. The building's architectural detail suggests
the informal adaptation of Classical architectural elements on buildings of the early
Colonial Revival. A two-story portico and flanking bay windows give visual interest
to the facade.

4. Railroad Station, Lafavette Boulevard, 1910. The railrocad station is a two-
story, multi-bay brick structure designed in 1910 by the architectural firm Heflin and
Stearns. Following the Jamestown Exposition of 1907, Virginia began to heartily embrace
the Colonial Revival style in which the exposition's buildings were designed. With its
central pedimented pavilion, round-arch windows and keystones, and Flemish-bond accented
by glazed headers, the building is an especially articulate example of the earliest phase
of the Colonial Revival.

5. 01d Post QOffice (now City Hall), 715 Princess Anne Street, 1909. The 01d
Post Office is a two-story, seven~bay,brick structure designed in 1909 by John Knox
Taylor, Supervising Architect for the Department of the Treasury. Similar in its
design to many of Taylor's other city post offices, the present city hall is fronted by
a hexastyle Ionic portico topped by a blocking course. As was typical of Colonial Revival
structures of the early period, the edifice combines Georgian and Neo~Classical archi-
tectural components to formulate its own distinctive interpretation of the earlier styles.

6. School Board Building, 813 Princess Anne Street, ca. 1910-1925. The School
Board Building is a two-story, five-bay, yellow brick structure built ca. 1910-1925. The
edifice's most commanding feature 1s its two-story, pedimented Doric portico. Stylis-
tically, the building suggests the strong popularity of Neo-Classical architecture within
the Colonial Revival movement.

{See Continuation Sheet #6)
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7. DESCRIPTION-—Inventory of Colonial Revival Buildings (continued)

7. Dominion Bank Building (originally Princess Anne Hotel), 904 Princess Anne
Street, ca. 1914-1920. The Dominion Bank Building is a four-story, five-bay, brick
structure built ca. 1914-1920. Ceclonial Revival in style, the building is architecturally
distinguished by a semicircular, two-story portico that shelters the main entrance. The
round arch windows on the first story and the keystone jack-arch window heads on the
remaining stories suggest the structure's Federal-style inspiration. The building forms
a backdrop for the 0ld City Hall.

8. 900 Block Princess Anne Street, ca. 1910-1920. The corner building at 900
Princess Anne Street is a ten-bay, two-story brick structure erected ca. 19510-1920. The
Georgian style provides it with its principal architectural components. These include
the roof balustrade, keystone jack-arch window heads and the pedimented doorway. The
building continues the idiom of the historic district's original Federal commercial
buildings.

9, TFarmers & Merchants Bank, 1001 Princess Anne Street, ca. 1927-1928, The
Farmers & Merchants Bank is a three-bay, lds-story structure erected in 1927-1928 and
conspicuously located on one of the district’s principal intersections. It ranks as
Fredericksburg's finest example of the Georgian Revival, copying in detail and mass
Wren's Winchester School. Constructed in brick on a stone foundation, the bank has
fine stone trim including beautifully carved garlands above the windows. The building
shows the strength of the Georgian style in Fredericksburg, a city noted for its early
Georgian architecture.

10. 1009 Princess Anne Street, ca. 1930-1935, 1009 Princess Anne Street is a
two-story, five-bay, brick commercial building. Although somewhat late, the structure
shows the continuing popularity of the Colonial Revival style in Fredericksburg's commercial
area and combines the spirit of its early 19th-century architecture.

11. 1105 Prince Edward Street, ca. 1910-)915. 1105 Prince Edward Street is a
2%-story, five-bay,brick residence.lts most distinguished Colonial Revival feature is its
one-story front porch featuring Ionic columns supporting a pediment.

12. 1107 Prince Edward Street, ca. 1906-1910, 1107 Prince Edward Street is a
2k-story, three-bay, wood-frame residence. Stylistically, the house is derived from
New England Federal period architecture rather than Virginia. The eclecticism of the
sources of the early Colonial Revival, as demonstrated in this house's detailing, is a
carryover from the eclecticism of the late 19th-century Romantic Revival movements.

13, 1111 Prince Edward Street, ca. 1914-1920., A 2%-story, five-bay, brick
residence, 1111 Prince Edward Street was built ca. 1914-1920. Like many Colonial Revival-
style residences of the period, its most distinguishing feature is its one-story porch
which runs the length of the facade. A full Doric cornice adds to the dignity of the
composition.

{See Continuation Sheet #7)
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7. DESCRIPTION--Inventory of Colonial Revival Buildings (continued)

14. 1111 Charles Street, ca. 1910-1915. 1111 Charles Street is a 2h-story,
three~bay, wood-frame structure., Like the preceding example at 1111 Prince Edward
Street, its most commanding feature is its one-story porch. Maintaining the tradition
of the Colonial Revival frame house, it is painted white.

15. 1601 Caroline Street, ca. 1890-1910, 1601 Carcline Street is a two-story,
wood~frame residence erected ca. 1890-1910. The house's most prominent feature is its
monumental two-tier portice which is transversed on the first story by a porch. It is
one of the more impressive houses 1In the residential area of the historic district.

16. 1222 Sophia Street, 1927. 1222 Sophia Street is a 2%-story, brick structure
with limestone trim. Built in a "U" shape plan, it was originally the Mary Washington
Hospital designed by the architects Wesley Bessell of New York and Philip Stearn of
Fredericksburg. With the name taken from one of Fredericksburg's most noted 18th-century
figures, it is appropriate that the hospital was built in the 18th-century Georgian
style. Reminiscent of the early style are the limestone trim detailing, Flemish-bond
brickwork, jack arches and entrance pavilions topped by pediments. The building provides
a good transition from the commercial architecture of the central business district to
the residential architecture in the historic district's fringe areas.
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1 quadrangle {Seale 1:24000)
cdericksburg, Va. 1943
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